HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 28, 2014
9:26 a.m

9: 26: 42 AM

RECONVENED: CONTI NUATI ON OF RECESSED MEETI NG ON 2/ 27/ 14.

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 9:26 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve
Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Anna Kim Tax D vi sion,

Al an Aust erman, Co-Chair
Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Mar k Neuman, Vice-Chair
Ma Costello

Bryce Edgnon

David Guttenberg

Li ndsey Hol nes

Cat hy Munoz

Tamm e W1 son

Les Gara
St eve Thonpson

Depart ment of Revenue.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Johanna Bal es, Deputy Director, Tax Division, Department of

Revenue.

SUMVARY

HB 204 SALMON & HERRI NG PRODUCT DEV' T TAX CREDI T
CSSSHB 204(FIN) was REPORTED out of comittee
wth a "do pass" recomendation and wth one
previously published indetermnate fiscal note:

FNL (REV).

House Fi nance Committee 1

02/ 28/ 14 9:26 A M



#hb204
HOUSE BI LL NO. 204

"An Act relating to a product developnent tax credit
for certain salnon and herring products; and providing
for an effective date.”

9:27:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ALAN AUSTERMAN, SPONSOR, discussed various
fish can sizes. The small can of red salnon was $6.99.
O her conpeting products of the same size included a
Bunbl ebee can costing $0.88 and an Atlantic salnobn can
costing $3.99. He spoke to the inportance of reducing the
salmon can size to allow it to conpete in the marketpl ace

He detailed that it would take noney and the refitting of
can machines to handle the smaller size.

9:29: 04 AM

Vice-Chair Neuman pointed to page 2, line 5 of the
| egislation. He thought the addition of herring would
enable a conpany that had received credits for purchasing
sal ron equi pnent in the past to purchase new equi pnment with
the credit.

ANNA KIM TAX DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, replied that
recipients would receive a tax credit for salnon and
herring conbined; a double credit was not provided. She
pointed to a Decenber 31, 2020 date.

Co-Chair Austerman asked for clarification. He discussed
that if a business added herring to its canning and sal non
processing it would need a new piece of equipnent to handl e
the filleting of herring. He understood the concern, but
did not believe the replacenent of all other equipnent
would qualify. He asked for verification that the bil

woul d not allow a business to replace all other equipnent.

Ms. Kimreplied in the affirmative.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman appreciated the clarification. He spoke
about recapturing product value. He discussed that it would
make sense for a business owner to use the maximum anount
of credits available for equipnment per year. He el aborated
that a savvy business owner would eventually pay no

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 02/ 28/ 14 9:26 A M



corporate taxes and would replace equiprment (e.g. freezers)
that was available for the credit. He asked if it was the
way the bill would work. M. Kim answered that it could
work that way; however, the recapture provision was
i ncluded for instances when business plans did not work as
i nt ended.

9:32:47 AM

Vi ce-Chair Neuman addressed the potential developnment of
powdered fish products. He noted that a significant anount
of noney was spent on research to develop nachines to
process the new products. He wondered what would happen if
t he machi nes were unsuccessful in producing the product. He
asked whether a business could continue to receive the
credits on new equipnent to try to nmake new products.

Ms. Kim replied that it depended on whether the business
was operating under the bill's provisions. She detailed
that the purpose was to incentivize new devel opnments and to
provide flexibility for the changi ng market. A business nmay
need to go back to the drawi ng board. She conmunicated that

as long as a business was fulfilling the intent contained
within the bill it would continue to receive the tax
credit.

JOHANNA BALES, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, TAX DI VI SION, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE (via teleconference), augnmented prior testinony.
She shared that taxpayers could receive credit for
investing in equipnent that was part of a value added
process. She believed it seened highly unlikely a conpany
woul d continue to invest its own noney (the credit covered
up to 50 percent of the equipnent cost). The departnent
believed the risk was Ilow for taxpayers to continue
investing in equipnent where 50 percent of their noney was
al so on the line.

9:35:51 AM

Representative WIson wondered whether the fishing industry
was being over taxed. She asked about tax credits versus a
reduction in taxes to the industry.

Co-Chair Austerman replied that the industry was not over
taxed. He believed that industry was probably undertaxed
when it cane to state taxes. He thought that providing
i ncentives was appropriate for the econom c devel opnent and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/ 28/ 14 9:26 A M



expansion of industries in the state. He spoke to the
encouragenent of reinvestnent in Alaska and various
industries including tinber, mnerals, and oil. He stated
that if the goal was for an industry to expand, many times
it was necessary to help. He noted that all other
industries in the state paled in conparison to the gas and
oil industry; however, no one hesitated to think about
providing a tax credit or a zero tax base to sone of the
maj or industries such as Cook Inlet. He believed it was
inportant to continue the incentive prograns to create
jobs. He stressed that the bill only applied to the process
and noney spent in Al aska.

Co-Chair Stoltze added his support for the industry in
Alaska. He pointed to conpetitive forces that pushed
industry out of Alaska for processing including higher
| abor and fuel costs. He surmsed that if a conpany only
went off what was best economically it would ship the
product frozen to China for processing. He noted that the
industry did not provide substantial support to the state's
general fund; however, it was a l|arge enployer. He opined
that if incentives were not offered conpanies would nake
di fferent economc decisions to relocate to other
jurisdictions. There were a nultitude of other conpetitive
costs; everything was nore expensive in Alaska. He had
| earned nore about the conmercial fishing industry during
his tinme on the House Finance Committee. He noted that
other fishing bills sel domreached the commttee.

9:39: 34 AM

Representati ve Minoz asked about issues that had led to the
decline in permt activity in the herring fishery. She
referenced page 5 of a Departnment of Comrerce, Comrunity
and Econom c Devel opnment presentation titled "Al aska North
to Opportunity: HB 204" (copy on file). She asked what the
i mpact of further herring comrercialization would be on roe
and other fisheries given that herring was at the base of
t he food chain.

Co-Chair Austernman answered that the initial concept
related to herring had pertained to Wstern Alaska. He
comuni cated that Wstern Alaska had nmuch forgone harvest
of salnmon. He pointed to the region's renoteness and its
cost of operations; it was prohibitively expensive to
harvest salnmon in the areas. The concept was that many
potential herring fishery opportunities existed in Wstern

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 02/ 28/ 14 9:26 A M



Al aska; once there was a conbined herring and salnon
mar ket, the industry would invest in the region. The bil
worked to provide incentive for the investnent. He stated
that one loan would not stand on its own. He explained that
currently herring was turned into |ow value products; the
objective was to increase the profitability and value so
fisheries would grow

Representative Mnoz was concerned about the change in
marketing from roe to the entire herring. She wondered
about the ecol ogical inpact.

Co- Chair Austerman saw no ecol ogi cal difference between the
current practice and what would occur under the bill. He
expl ai ned that roe had the highest value and woul d continue
to be harvested. Currently the problem was that all nale
herring were discarded or frozen for bait. The incentive
would be to use the entire fish, which would increase
profitability. He conmunicated that several years earlier
the legislature had provided the Al aska Seafood Marketing
Institute with funds to nmarket herring in the international
mar ket pl ace. The institute had shown that there was a
demand for the high protein. He shared that CDQ groups in
Western Alaska had begun to enquire how they could
incorporate herring products into their production. He
added that the incentive had al ready begun to work.

Representative Minoz surm sed that the goal was to utilize
what was not used currently. Co-Chair Austerman replied in
the affirmative.

Co-Chair Stoltze referred to Co-Chair Austerman's testinony
that taxes affected any industry's behavior. He pointed to
the potential reduction in state revenue and wondered if
comunities woul d absorb part of the tax | oss.

Ms. Kimreplied in the negative.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered whether it was good or bad [that
the communities would not share in the tax | oss].

9:43: 52 AM

Co-Chair Austerman was unsure. He stated that the objective
was to create economc developnment and a tax Dbase
particularly in small comunities.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/ 28/ 14 9:26 A M



Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the goal was to include the
communities in the encouragenent guot i ent . Co- Chai r
Aust er man agr eed.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman stated that as a woodworker he would |ike
to see increased product developnent in the forestry
industry. He stated that the fishery industry was huge in
Al aska and was worth hundreds of mllions of dollars. He
referred to Co-Chair Austerman's testinony that current
taxes were not where they should be. He stated that there
were many industries that wuwuld Ilike to have the
opportunities. He stressed that snmall |oggers needed help.
He di scussed new product devel opnent, changes in equi pnent
and in product sizes. He enphasized that one of the |argest
industries paid a mninal anobunt in taxes to the state. He
remarked that $2 million had just been cut from the
Department of Health and Social Services budget. He had
guestions about how the state continued to create tax
breaks for industries. He wondered about the expected cost
and the idea of neasuring it against other industries the
state may want to help. He questioned where to start and
stop with incentives.

Co-Chair Stoltze believed the observation was fair. He
di scussed that nmuch of the opposition to mning and tinber
came fromthe fishing industry.

Representative GQuttenberg asked if the enhancenent of
product value would provide a return to the state. He
wondered about cost recovery. M. Kim replied that over
time the change was expected to boost the econony and to
address mar ket changes.

9:47: 01 AM

Representative Quttenberg wondered iif the success in
devel opi ng new products woul d enhance the tax base. M. Kim
referred to a handout from the departnment titled "Fisheries
Busi ness Tax Revenue and Tax Credits dainmed" (copy on
file). She conmunicated that in 2013 the tax credit had
been $1.8 million [related to sal non product devel opnent].
She believed that the positive inpact could not necessarily
be reflected by dollars. She believed the overall benefit
woul d be shared.

Co-Chair Stoltze nmade a remark about free market and
capitalism

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/ 28/ 14 9:26 A M



Co-Chair Austerman highlighted that creating value for an
unutilized species would help offset the credit in the
future.

Representati ve Edgnon added that a significant portion of
the bill was to take a raw seafood product and make it nore
mar ket conpetitive. The outconme was neant to benefit
fishermen in ternms of contributions that went into the
fisheries business tax that would in theory increase the 50
percent going back to comunities and the state. He
contended that a correlation existed; if the state could
help the industry provide nore market ready products there
was a multiplier effect back to fishernen, the state, and
the community. He stated that it was not possible to
provide an exact nunber or know what the inpact of the
credit would be over tinme. He noted that the fiscal note
tal ked about unpredictability. Since the tax credit's
inception in 2003 it had stinulated econom c value for the
fishernmen, industry, and the state.

Co-Chair Stoltze remarked that there had not been a boost
to the state treasury.

Representative Edgnon noted that the discussion was not
about significant dollars. He stated that the raw fisheries
busi ness tax was a separate issue.

Co-Chair Stoltze did not want to rai se expectations.
Representati ve Edgnon believed the commttee understood the
significance of the raw fisheries business tax to the
state.

9:50: 33 AM

Co-Chair Austerman referred to the val ue-added portion of
the waste stream ldeally the waste stream would be
converted to a high protein, human-grade value that could
be used as a global food source. A phase process was
expected; in the near-termthe waste stream could be turned
into a product such as pet food and as the narketplace and
process built over tinme it was expected to becone human-
grade protein. He believed the human-grade product would
provide nore value to the industry and the market pl ace.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 02/ 28/ 14 9:26 A M



Representative Costello discussed the previously published
indeterminate fiscal note from the Departnent of Revenue
the inpact to the operating budget was zero and the inpact
in change of revenues to the state was i ndetermn nate.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the bill continued and expanded
a current program

Representative Costello MOVED to REPORT CSSSHB 204(FI N) out
of commttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so order ed.

CSSSHB 204(FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" reconmmendation and wth one previously published
i ndetermi nate fiscal note: FN1 (REV)

Co-Chair Stoltze discussed the schedule for the follow ng
nmeeti ng.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

9:55: 07 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:55 a. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/ 28/ 14 9:26 A M



